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December 21, 1998

Sent By Certified Mail

Mr. Kenneth Feld, President

Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Bailey Circus
8607 Westwood Center Drive

Vienna, Va. 22182

Re: Violations of the Endangered Species Act
Notice of Intent To Sue

Dear Mr. Feld:

This letter is written pursuant to the Endangered Species
Act ("ESA"), 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), on behalf of the Performing
Animal Welfare Society ("PAWS"), its officers, Pat Derby and Ed
Stewart, and ex-Ringling Brothers’' employee Glenn Ewell to
provide you notice of violations of the ESA. As more fully
described below, Ringling Brothers is in violation of the
prohibition against the "taking" of endangered Asian elephants,
16 U.S.C. § 1538(a), since its elephant trainers and handlers
routinely beat elephants, including baby elephants, in order to
make them perform or behave in a particular way, and Ringling '
Brothers also keeps the elephants chained for extremely long
periods of time. Ringling Brothers is also in violation of 16
U.S.C. § 1538 because, for the same reasons, it i1s in possession
of animals that have been unlawfully "taken" and because it
continues to transport those animals in interstate commerce.

1. Elephants Are Severely Beaten With Bull~Hooks;

Enclosed is a videotape of sworn deposition testimony of two
recent employees of Ringling Brothers who worked on the animal
crew for Ringling Brothers’ Blue Unit between September and
December, 1998, Glen Ewell and James Stechcon. Exhibit A.
Transcripts of the depositions are also enclosed as Exhibits B
and C. 'Both individuals were assigned primarily to the care of
the elephant herd.
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Both individuals provide sworn testimony that on many
occasions they witnessed Ringling Brothers’ elephant handlers and
trainers beat elephants severely with an instrument called a
"bull hook" which is a hard club made of fiber glass, wood, or
metal, with a sharp hook on the end of it. They explain that on
several occasions, these employees used bull hooks to beat
elephants repeatedly on the head, ankles, and other parts of
their bodies to make them behave in a particular way or to punish
them for not performing as desired. '

Both men also testified that the Ringling Brothers’
elephant handlers and trainers use the sharp end of the bull hook
to make the elephants do as they wish, by hooking it onto their
ears, their ankles, and other parts of their hides and then
pulling on the bull hook. These men also testified that these
beatings and stabbings with the bull hooks cause the elephants
much distress and pain, as evidenced by the animals’ cries and
other distressful verbal reactions, and that the elephant ,
handlers often draw blood from the animals when they use the bull
hooks.

Although the trainers use the bull hocks on many of these
animals, Mr. Ewell and Mr. Stechcon testified that particular
elephants are beaten more freguently, including an Asian elephant
named "Nicole," and a baby elephant named "Benjamin." The men
testified that they have seen Randy and Adam beat Niccle on
several occasions, and that Randy beat her so hard once that he
shattered a bull hook on her. Mr. Stechcon testified that he saw
three of the handlers and trainers, Randy, Adam, and Pat, beating
Nicole at one time.

The men also testified that they also witnessed Pat beat the
baby elephant Benjamin many times. Both men testified that
beatings occurred throughout the country where the Blue Unit
performed, including Denver, Colorado, Cleveland, Ohio, and the
Rosemont Arena, outside Chicago, Illinoils. They also testified
that the beatings were completely unprovoked by the animals, who
are extremely gentle and cooperative.

Both men further testified that Jeffrey Steele, who is the
Executive Manager of the "Blue Unit" was present during at least
one severe pbeating of Nicole -- that this vicious beating with a
bull hook took place in Rosemont, Illinois, outside of Chicago,
after "Randy" made Nicole lay down on the ground, that this
beating lasted for several minutes, and that it was conducted
within full view of Mr. Steele. When asked whether it was
possible that Mr. Steele did not see this beating and therefore
was unaware of it, one of the deponents, Mr. Stechcon, testified
that while he did not believe that Mr. Steele could have avoided
gseeing the beating, he certainly could not have missed hearing
the repeated "whacking" sound of the bull hook on Nicole as well
as Nicole’s cries of distress.



Despite this abusive and clearly unlawful treatment toward
this animal, Mr. Steele neither said nor did anything to stop it,
nor did he take any action whatsoever to reprimand the Ringling
Brothers’ employee who was engaging in this conduct. Rather,

according to both Mr. Ewell and Mr. Stechcon, Mr. Steele -- the
top executive officer of the Blue Unit -- simply ignored this
conduct and went on about his business. This incident alone, and

Mr. Steele’s cavalier reaction to it, suggests that such
treatment of elephants in Ringling Brothers’ circus is by no
means aberraticnal, but, rather, i1s business as usual for this
exhibitor.

A1l of this conduct violates the provision of the ESA that
prohibits individuals from engaging in conduct that "takes" an
endangered species. 16 U.S.C. § 1538. The term "take" is
defined to include "harass" or "harm." 16 U.S.C. § 1532(19).

2. Elephants, Including Babieg, Are Left Chained For Davs.

Both deponents also testified that elephants are left
chained hour after hour, each day, and that, with few exceptions,
they are allowed off their chains only when they perform. In
addition, when the circus is traveling, the elephants remain
chained in the stock cars for as long as 2-3 days consecutively,
and not provided any opportunity, whatsoever, to walk around, or
otherwise exercise. ‘

‘ These conditions, which are completely at odds with the
natural biclogical needs of these magnificent animals, also
constitute the unlawful "taking" of endangered elephants.

* * *

The above constitutes notice of violations of the ESA.
Unless Ringling Brothers takes immediate actions to stop these
violations of the statute, please be advised that our clients
intend to bring a lawsuilt pursuant to the citizen suit provision
of the ESA to compel it to do so.

Sincerely,

i ' p

e T
y A A /v AN
Kattherine A. Méyer

Cara L. Romanzo

cc:. Bruce Babbitt, Secretary of the
Department of the Interior
Jamie Rappaport Clark, Director,

Fish and Wildlife Service
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Katherine A. Meyer | Telephone (202) 588-5206
Eric R. Glitzenstein Fax (202) 588-5049
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November 15, 1999 -

Ssent By Certified Mail

Mr. Kenneth Feld, President

Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Bailey Circus
8607 Westwood Center Drive

Vienna, Va. 22182

Re: Violations of the Endangered Species Act
Notice of Intent To Sue v

Dear Mr. Feld:

The purpose of this letter is to supplement the previous
notice letter sent to you on December 21, 1998, on behalf of Pat
Derby and Ed Stewart regarding violations of the Endangered
Species Act, 16 U.S.C. § 1538, because of the unlawful "taking'
of endangered Asian elephants, including baby elephants. I have
attached a copy of our previous notice letter for your
convenience.

Through the Freedom of Information Act, we recently received
copies of inspection report documents from the U.S. Pepartment of
Agriculture concerning Ringling Brothers’ care and treatment of
baby elephants at its "Center for Elephant Conservation" in Polk
city, Florida. One of those reports shows that, in February,
1999, the USDA inspector observed "large visible lesions" on the
rear legs of two baby Asian elephants, Doc and Angelica, and that
Ringling Brothers’ employees explained that these lesions "were
caused by rope burns, resulting from the separation process from
the mothers on January 6, 1999." See Attachment. These
elephants were born on May 8, 1997, and June 23, 1997,
respectively. Accordingly, they were less than 2 years old when
they were forcibly removed from their mothers by Ringling
Brothers.

The treatment of these elephants, which we can only presume
is part of Ringling Bros.’ routine "separation process," also
constitutes an unlawful "taking" of endangered elephants, in

ecycled paper



violation of section 9 of the Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. §
1538, and the agency’s implementing regulations, because it
"harms'" and “"harasses" the babies, and also "harasses" their
mothers, by seriously disrupting the natural relationship between
the adult females and their children. Indeed, it is well
established that, in the wild, baby elephants are not usually
weaned until they are between 2-4 years old, or older, and that,
even after that, female elephants remain with their mothers and
the rest of their herd for the rest of their lives, while males
stay with their families until they are between 9-15 years old.
See, e.g., V. Taylor, "Captive Breeding and Infant Mortality in
Asian Elephants," Zoo Biology 17:311-332 (1998); P. Lee, National
Geographic Research (1986) at 388-401.

Accordingly, this treatment -- along with the other
treatment outlined in our previous letter -- is unlawful under
the ESA. It also violates the conditions under which Ringling
Brothers holds a captive-bred wildlife registration -- a separate
violation of the ESA. For these reasons, we are requesting an
investigation by the Fish and Wildlife Service, and we are also
requesting that the agency revoke Ringling Brothers’ registration
and permits under the ESA with respect to its possession and use
of endangered and threatened elephants. Please be advised that
we may also bring a lawsuit directly against Ringling Brothers
for this unconscionable and illegal conduct.

Sincerely,

(ot

Katherine A. Meye

cc: Bruce Babbitt, Secretary,
Department of the Interior
Jamie Clark, Director,
Fish and Wildlife Service




Meyer & Glitzenstein
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December 21, 1998

Sent By Certified Mail

My. Kenneth Feld, Prasiden:

Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Balley Circus
8607 Westwood Center Drive

Vienna, Va., 22182

Re: Violations of the Endangered Species Act
Notice of Intent To Sue

Dear Mr. Feld:

This letter is wri

tzen pursuant to the Endangered Species
Act ("ESA"), 16 U.S.C. § 1310(g), on behalf of the Performing
Animal Welfare Scciety ("PAWS"), its officers, Pat Derby and Ed
Stewart, and ex-Ringling Brcothers’ employee Glenn Ewell to
provide you notice of violaticns of the ESA. As more fully
described below, Ringling Brothers is in violation of the

prohibition against-the "takin of endangered Asian elephants,
16 U.S.C. § 1538(a), since izs elephant trainers and handlers
routinely beat elephants, including baby elephants, in order to
make them perform or behave in a particular way, and Ringling
Brothers also keeps the eleghants chained for extremely long
periods of time. Ringling Brothers is also in violation of 16
U.S.C. § 1538 because, for the same reasons, it is in possession
of animals that have been unlawfully "taken" and because it
continues to transport thcse animals in interstate commerce.

n

1. Elephants Are Severely Beaten With Bull Hooks.

Enclosed is a videotage of sworn deposition testimony of two
recent employees of Ringling Brothers who worked on the animal
crew for Ringling Brothers’ Blue Unit between September and
December, 1998, Glen Ewell and James Stechcon. Exhibit A.
Transcripts of the depcsitions are also enclosed as Exhibits B
and C. Both individuals were assigned primarily to the care of
the elephant herd. \
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Both individuals provide sworn testimony that on many
occasions they witnessed Ringling Brothers’ elephant handlers and
trainers beat elephants severely with an instrument called a
"pull hook" which ig a hard club made of fiber glass, wood, or
metal, with a sharp hook on the end of it. They explain that on
several occasicns, these emplovees used bull hooks to beat
elephants repeatedly on the head, ankles, and other parts of
their bodies to make them behave in a particular way or to punish
them for not performing as desiresd.

Both men alsc testifiad that the Ringling Brothers’
elephant handlers and trainers use the sharp end of the bull hook
to make the elephants do as thev wish, by hocking it onto their
ears, their ankles, and other parts of their hides and then
pulling on the bull hook. These men also testified chat these
beatings and stabbings with the bull hooks cause the elephants
much distress and paln, as evidenced by the animals’ cries and
other distressful verbal r=acticns, and that the elsaphant
handlers often draw bloocd frcom the animals when they use the bull
nooxks.

lthough the trainers use the bull hccks on many of these
animals, Mr. Ewell and Mr. Stechcon t=sstified that particular
elephants ars beatsn more freqguently, including an Asian elephant
named "Nicole," and a baby elephant named "Benjamin." The men
testified that they have seen Randy and Adam bea:z Nicole on
several occasions, and that Randy beat her so hard once that he
shattered a bull hcok on her. Mr. Stachceon testified that he saw
three of the handlers and trainers, Randy, Adam, and Pat, beating
Nicole at cne time.

The men aisc testified that they alsc witnessed Pat beat the
baby elephant Benjamin many times. Both men testifled that
beatings occurred throughout the country whers the Blue Unit
performed, including Denver, Colorado, Cleveland, Ohio, and the
Rosemont Arena, outside Chicago, Illinois. They also testified
that the beatings were completely unprovokad by the animals, who
are extremely gentle and cooperativea.

Both men further testified that Jeffrey Steele, who 1is the
Executive Manager of the "Blue Unit" was present during at least
one severe beating of Nicole -- that this vicious beating with a
bull hook took place in Rosemont, Illinois, outside of Chicago,
after "Randy" made Nicole. lay down on the ground, that this
beating lasted for several minutes, and that it was conducted
within full view of Mr. Steele. When asked whether it was
possible that Mr. Steele did not see this beating and therefore
was unaware of it, cne of the deponents, Mr. Stechcon, testified
rhat while he did nct belisve that Mr. Steele could have avoided
seeinc the beating, he certainly could not have missed hearing
the repeated "whacking" sound of the bull hook on Nicole as well
as Nicole’'s cries of distress.



Despite this abusive and clearly unlawful treatment toward
this animal, Mr. Steele neither said nor did anvthing to stop it
nor did he take any action whatscever to reprimand the Ringllng '
Brothers’ employes who was engaging in this conduct. Rather,

according to pboth Mr. Ewell and Mr. Stechcon, Mr. Steele -- the
top executive officer of the Blue Unit -- simply ignored this
conduct and went on about his business. This incident alone, and

Mr. Steele’s cavalier reaction to it, suggests that such
treatment of elephants in Ringling Brothers’ circus is by no
means aberrational, buz, rather, is business as usual for this
exhibitor

All of tnis conduct violates the provision of the ESA that
prohibits individuals from engaging in conduct that "takes" an
endangerad species. 16 U.S.C. § 1538. The term "take" is
defined to include "harass" or "harm." 16 U.S.C. § 1532(19).
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Thesa conditions, which axe completely a
natural biological needs of these magnificent animals, alsc
corstcituce the unlawful "caking" of endangered elephants
* ) R *

The abeove constitutes nctice of violaticns of the ESA.
Unless Ringling Brothers takes immediate actions to stop these
violations of the statute, please be advised that our clients
intend to bring a lawsuit pursuant to the citizen suit pruv151on
of the ESA to compel it to do so.

Slncevely,

(,f'w (7’)“& ‘\//”*""

abherine A Me?

_ | Lo U5

72
Cara L. Romanzo '”73

cc: Bruce BRabbitt, Secretary of the
Department of the Interior
Jamie Rappapcrt Clark, Director,

Fish and Wildlife Sexrvice
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Anlmal Care

INSPECTION REPORT FEB 14 1939
_ : otd7:
Fald Entertainiment Inc, Site OSL 52-C-T136&
Ringling Bros/Barnum & Bailay Center For Elephant Consarvation 2/19-10/99
8607 Westwood Canter Drive | 12850 Old Grade Road 945 AM
" Vienna, VA 22182 Polk City, FL. 33864 Reinspaction
NARRATIVE

Currant Inventory 27 Asian Elephants
CATEGORY I: Non-compliant item(s) praviously identified that have been correctad.
Veterinary Care 2.40

A new Program of Veterinary Care has been completed.

CATEGORY lit: Noﬁ«:’ampliant itam(s) identified this inspection
Records 2.75 :
The TE test results of Jenny, which recently came fram the Red unit on Dacember 1,
1998, are not available for review. All records shail be readily available for review by any APHIS
- official. ' "
o Te be corrected by:  February 16, 1999

NOTE: i :
Culture results on Vance indicated a positive TB status, garty January 1899. As of this date, na.
treatment has been instituted. This animal is owned by Roman Schmitt. : \

There were large visibie lasions on the rear legs of both Doc and Angetica. When gquestioned as
to the cause of these lesions, it was stated by Mr. Jim Williams & Mr. Gary Jacebson ihat these
scars were caused by rope bums, resutting from the separation process from the mothers on
~ January B, 1999, Angelica's lesion appeared as a pink linear scar, approx 6" long x 1" wide on:
the right rear leg. The left rear leg also had an scar diractly below the cloth leg fie. Both jesions
appeared to have'been treated with an iodine-based ointment (they wera rmoist). Angelica also
had twe linear healing scars on the back of the right hind leg, Doc had a pink scar on the right’
rear mid-lag ares. P
. All these lasione now appear to be healing scars. After removal of the medicated ointment or
2/10, they appeared much less pink.
This issue iz of concem, and will ba forwarded to Headquarters for review to determine if it is a
violation of the AWA (per instructione by Dr. Betty Goldentyer). A formal determination will be -
made at a later date and forwarded to the facility. .

 rapare 7 Lym /TR oute: 210/

THiar " Rubert Brandes: D;v.u.'_v]‘mm Wedical Officar, USDA, APHIS, Anitai Cars LARIS (D NO. 2002
. N ‘/ ‘A
cmyawa&vnday;‘ﬁz)‘@-.h “Wl/&r\m Date: 2. 0 d

RECEIVED  10-28-88  11:47 FROM- TO-MEYER & GLITZENSTEIN- PAGE 02



Meyer & Glitzenstein
1601 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
Suite 700
Washington, D.C. 20009-1056

Katherine A. Meyer Telephone (202) 588-5206
Eric R. Glitzenstein ‘ Fax (202) 588-5049
Howard M. Crystal meyerglitz@meyerglitz.com

Jonathan R. Lovvormn
Daniel R. Vice
*Amy R. Atwood
*Admitted in PA only

April 12, 2001

Sent By Certified Mail

Mr. Kenneth Feld, President :
Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Bailey Circus
8607 Westwood Center Drive

Vienna, Va. 22182

Re: Notice of Continuing Violations of the Endangered
Species Act

Dear Mr. Feld:

This letter is written pursuant to the Endangered Species
Act ("ESA"), 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), on behalf of the American
Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals, the Fund for
Animals, the Animal Welfare Institute, and Tom Rider to provide
you notice of additional and continuing vioclations of the ESA by
Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Bailey Circus ("Ringling Bros. ")
because of its "taking" of endangered Asian elephants used in the
clrcus.

First, enclosed is a videotape that shows young elephants
being struck with bullhooks or clubs and other instruments, and,
in one case, being clipped with a sharp instrument we believe is
called a "leatherman." This footage was recorded just months
ago, in the summer of 2000 in California. The footage furthex
shows that the elephants are being struck without any verbal
command first being given, and without any provocation by the
animals whatsoever, and that the animals are clearly reacting to
this physical mistreatment. The videotape also shows a young
chained elephant exhibiting stereotypical behavior as it tries to
get out of its chains, over and over again.

Addiﬁional footage on the tape, taken in the summer of 1998
in California, shows Ringling Bros.’ employees hitting adult
elephants under their chins with what appears to be a bullhook or
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club, in an apparent effort to make the animals hold their heads
up higher. BAgain, this is done without giving the elephants any
verbal command and with no provocation on the part of the
animale. This videotape provides graphic evidence that Ringling
Bros. "takes" these endangered animals by "harming" and
"harassing" them, in clear violation of the ESA and that
statute’s implementing regulations.

Second, we understand from eye-witnesses who attended
performances of the circus during Ringling Bros.’' recent vigit to
the Baltimore/Washington, D.C. area, that the circus used the
elephant "Karen" in the pre-show activities, during which she was
brought out and displayed in extremely close proximity to members
of the audience, including very young children. However,
according to several former Ringling Bros.' employees, including
Tom Rider, Glen Ewell, and James Strechon, due to years of
beatings at the hands of Ringling Bros.’ trainers, Karen ig an
extremely dangerous animal, who is considered so dangerous by
Ringling Bros. itself that the members of the elephant crew have
been warned by the animal’s trainers not to go anywhere near her
or they risk being killed. For this reason, members of the crew
have been instructed not to feed Karen directly or to bathe her
without a trainer being present to maintain control over her.

Use of this extremely dangerous animal, particularly in the
pre-show activities -- when she is in close proximity to children
-~ violates Animal Welfare Act regulations, 9 C.F.R. § 2.131(b),
which prohibit animals from being exhibited if they pose a risk
to the safety of the public. Accordingly, use of this animal in
this way also violates your duties under the ESA and that
statute’s implementing regulations, 50 C.F.R. § 13.41, which
provide that any person holding a permit under section 10 of the
ESA '"must comply . . . with all applicable laws and regulations
governing the permitted activity," including applicable Animal
Welfare Act regulations.

You have previously been put on notice of evidence of
violations of the ESA concerning your treatment of Asian
elephants, by letters dated December 21, 1998 and November 15,
1999, which is hereby incorporated by reference. The new
evidence presented here demonstrates that Ringling Bros.
continues to engage in this unlawful conduct.

Accordingly, by this letter, you are on notice of Ringling
Brosg.’ additional and continuing violations of the law. As
required by the ESA, we are providing copies of this letter to
the Secretary of the Department of the Interioxr, and to the
Director of the Fish and Wildlife Service. Because this matter
is also currently in litigation, we are also providing a copy of
this letter to your attorneys.



ccC:

Sinceregly,

KathRerine/A. Meyer

-~

Daniel R. Vice

Gale Norton, Secretary of the
Department of the Interior

Marshall Jones, Acting Director,
‘Fish and Wildlife Sexrvice

Congressman Sam Farr

Jeannie Perron



ANIMAL

PROTECTION
INSTITUTE

APl ‘Heodquarters
Muailing Address:
PO. Box 22505
Sacramento, CA
95822

Street Address:
1122 S Street
Sacramento, CA
95814

916,447.3085
1.800.348.7287

Fax 916.447-3070
info@upi4animqls.org
www.api4animals.org

APl's
PRIMATE

SANCTUARY
Dilley, TX
www.snawmonkey.org

@

¥ Case 1:03-cv-02006-EGS-JMF  Document 57  Filed 11/21/2005 Page 1 of 11

July 22, 2005

Sent by Certified Mail

Mr. Kenneth Feld, President
Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Bailey Circus

. 8607 Westwood Center Drive
~ Vienna, VA 22182

" Re:  Notice of Continuing Violations of the Endangered Species Act

Dear Mr. Feld:

This letter is written pursuant to the BEndangered Species Act (“ESA™), 16 US.C. §
1540 (g), on behalf of the Animal Protection Institute to provide you notice of
continuing violations of the ESA by Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Bailey Circus
(“Ringling Bros,”) because of its “taking” of endangered Asian elephants used in the
cireus, 16 U.S.C. § 1538 (a), since its elephant trainers and handlers routinely chain and
confine their elephants, use the bullhook on their elephants and forcibly separate baby
elephants from their mothers

 First, Ringling Bros. elephants are routinely chained hour after hour, each day, and are

generally allowed off their chains, with very few exceptions, only when they perform.

“ This is evidenced by the eye-witness accounts of former Ringling Bros. employees Tom

Rider and Frank Hagan, as well as video footage that has been taken over the years by
many individuals throughout the country. Indeed, photographs taken as recently as
January 26, 2005 show that within seconds of the elephants completing their walk from
the train station to the arena whete they were to perform, chains were placed onthe
elephants. In addition, when the elephants are traveling from location to location, the
elephants remain chained in the stock cars for as long as 2-3 days consecutively, and are
not provided any opportunity to walk around, or otherwise exercise. This continual use
of chains on these animals violates the provisions of the ESA that prohibits individuals .
from engaging in conduct that “takes” these endangered animals by “barming” and
“hatassing” them, in clear violation of the ESA and that statute’s 1mplementmg
regulations. 16 U.S.C. § 1538,

Second, Ringling Bros.’ trainers and handlers routinely use the bullhook on their
¢lephants, as both Mr, Rider and Mr. Hagen have confirmed, and as has also been
recorded on videotape throughout the country. For example, on September 3,2004 a
CBS affiliate in San Francisco aired footage of one of your handlers using the bullhook
on a Ringling elephant. The use of the bulthook to train, “discipline,” control, and
dominate the elephants also “takes” these endangered animals by “wounding,
“harming” and “harassing” them, in clear violation of the ESA and that statute’s
1mplcmentmg regulations. 16 U.S.C, § 1538,

Thn‘d, Ringling Bros. forcibly separates baby elephants from their mothers at its.
“Center for Elephant Conservation” in Polk City, Florida, long before the animals are
naturally wean% from their mothers. The process of removin &i baby elephants

i , Eschibit 1
v, Nev. 03~2006 (EGS)



' Case 1: 03 _ov-02006-EGS-JMF  Document 57 Filed 11/21/2005  Page 2 of 11
inflicts both physical and psychological harm on the baby elephants, and also harms the
mothers. The physical harm to the baby elephants caused by this separation process was
evidenced by the February 1999 incident where USDA inspectors observed “large
visible lesions” on the rear legs of two nghng Bros, baby elephants, Doc and
Angelica. At that time, Ringling employees candidly admitted that this was part of its
“routine” separation practice. Since Ringling Bros. continues to produce baby elephants
at the “CEC” for use in its circus, and does not allow those animals to be naturally
weaned from their mothers or to stay with theirmothers, as they would in the wild, we
have every reason to believe that this practice of forcibly removing baby elephants from
their mothers continues. This again is evidence that Ringling Bros. “takes” these

-endangered animals by “harming” and “harassing” them, in vnolatlon of the ESA and its
implementing regulations. 16 U.S.C. § 1538,

The continual practices of chaining, using the bullhook, and forcibly removing baby
elephants from their mothers also violate the Animal Welfare Act (“AWA”) and it’s
implementing regulations and policies. Specifically, the practice of chaining elephants
for extended periods of time each day violates 9 C.F.R. § 3.128 and United States
Department of Agriculture Policy #6; the use of the bullhook to train, “discipline,” -
control and dominate the elephants violates 9 C.F.R. § 2.131; and the forcible
separation of baby elephants from their mothers violates 9 CF.R. § 2.131 and 9 CI'R.
§ 3.137. Accordingly, Ringling Bros. angoing practices of engaging in these activities
‘constitutes additional violations of the Endangered Species Act and that statute’s
implementing regulations, since 50 C.F.R. § 13.48 provides that any person holding a
permit under Section 10 of the ESA. “must comply... with all applicable laws and
regulations governing the permitted activity,” including applicable AWA regulations.

You have previously been put on notice by other animal protection groups of evidence
of violations of the ESA concerning your treatment of Asian elephants, by letters dated
December 21, 1998, November 15, 1999, and April 12, 2001, which are all hereby
incorporated by teferénce. Copies of those letters are also enclosed.

Accor_dingly, by this letter, you are on notice of Ringling Bros.” continuing violations of
the law.

Sincerely,

| AN\ ai@g)»\

Nicole G. Paguette, Esq.
Greneral Counsel

- ene,
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Katherine A. Meyer
Eric R, Glitzenstein
Howard M. Crystal

Jonathan R. Lovvorn®

@A dpaitied in CA only

Meyer & Glitzenstein
1601 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
Suite 700
Washington, D.C. 20009-1035

Telephone (202) 588.5206
Fax (202) 588-5049

December 21, 1998

' Bent By Certified Mail

Mr. Kenneth Feld, President

Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Bailey Circus
8607 Westwood Center Drive ‘
Vienna, Va. 22182 ’

Re: Violations of the Endangeréd Species Act
Notice of Intent To Sue

Dear Mr. Feld:

This letter is written pursuant to the Endangered Species
Act: ("ESA"), 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), on behaif of the Performing
Animal Welfare Society ("PAWS"), its officers, Pat Derby. and Ed
Stewart, and ex-Ringling Brothers’ employee Glenn Ewell to
provide you notice of violations of the ESA. As more fully
described below, Ringling Brothers is in violation of the’
prohibition against the “taking" of endangered Asian elephants,
16 U.8.C. § 1538(a), since its elephant trainers and handlers
routinely beat elephants, including baby elephants, in order to
make them perform or behave in a particular way, and Ringling
Brothers also keeps the elephants chained for extresmely long
periods of time. Ringling Brothers is also in violation of 16
U.S.C. § 1838 because, for the same reasons, it is in possession
of animals that have been unlawfully "taken" and because it
continues to transport those animale in interstate commerce.

1. Elephants Are Severely Beaten With Bull HBooks.

Enclosed is a videotape of sworn deposition testimony of two
recent employees of Ringling Brothers who worked on the animal
crew for Ringling Brothers’ Blue Unit between September and
December, 1998, Glen Ewell and James gtechcon. Bxhibit A,
Transcripts of the depositions are also enclosed as Exhibits B
and C. 'Both individuals were assigned primarily to the care of
the elephant herd.

— Exhibit A
Civ. No. 00-1641 (ESG)

v



C‘ase 1:03-cv-02006-EGS-JMF  Document 57 Filed 11/21/2005 vPage 4 of 11

Both individuals provide sworn testimony tnat on many
occasions they witnessed Ringling Brothers’ elephant handlers and
rrainers beat elephants severely with an instrument called a
"pbull hook" which is a hard club made of fiber glass, wood, oY
metal, with a sharp hook on the end of it. They explain that on
several occasions, these employees used bull hocks to beat
elephants repeatedly on the head, ankles, and other parts of
~heir bodies to make them behave in a particular way or to punish
them for not performing as desired.

‘Both men also testified that the Ringling Brothers’
elephant handlers and trainers use the sharp end of the bull nhook
to make the elephants do as they wish, by hooking it onto their
ears, their ankles, and other parts of their nides and then
pulling on the bull hook. These men also testified that these
beatings. and stabbings with the bull hooks cause the elephants
much distress and pain, as evidenced by the animals’ cries and
other distressful verbal reactions, and that the elephant . :
handlers often draw blood from the animals when they use the bull
hooks. ‘

Although the trainers use the bull hooks on many of these
animals, Mr. Bwell and Mr. Stechcon testified that particular
elephants are beaten moxe frequently, including an Asian elephant
named "Nicole," and a baby elephant named "Renjamin." The men
restified that they have seen Randy and Adam beat Nicole on
several occasions, and that Randy beat kher so hard once that he
shattersad a bull hook on her. Mr. Stechcon testified that he saw
thrse of the handlers and trainers, Randy, Adam, and Pat, beating
Nicole at one time.

 The men also testified that they also witnessed Pat beat the
baby elephant Benjamin many times, Both men testified that
beatings occurred throughout the country where the Blue Unit
"~ performed, including Denver, Colorado, Cleveland, Ohic, and the
Rosemont Arena, outside Chicago, Illinois. They also testified
chat the beatingg were completely unprovoked by the animals, who
are extremely gentle and cooperative,

‘Both men further testified that Jeffrey Steele, who is the
BExecutive Manager of the 'Blue Unit" was present during at least
one severs beating of Nicole -- that this vicious beating with a
- pull hook tock place in Rosemont, T1linois, outside of Chicago,
‘after "Randy" made Nicole lay down on the ground, that this
beating lasted for several minutes, and that it was conducted
within full view of Mr. Steele. When asked whether it was
possible that Mr. Stesle did not see this beating and therefore
was unaware of it, one of the deponents, Mr. Stechcon,rtestified
chat while he did not believe that Mr. gteele could have avoided
seeing the beating, he certainly could not have missed hearing
the repeated "whacking’ sound of the bull hook on Nicole as well
as Nicole’s cries of distress.
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_ Despite this abusive and clearly unlawful treacment tLoward
chie animal, My. Steele neither aaid nor did anything to stop it,
nor did he take any action whatsoever to reprimand the Ringling
Brothers' employee who was engaging in this conduct. Rather,
according to both Mr, Ewell and Mr. Stechecon, Mr. Steele -- the
top executive officer of the Blue Unit -- simply ignored this
conduct and went on about his business. This incident alone, and
Mr. Steele’s cavalier reaction to it, suggests that such
rreatment of elephants in Ringling Brothers' circus is by no
means aberrational, .but, rather, i1s business as usual foxr this

exhibitor.

All of this conduct viclates the provision of the ESA that
prohibits_individuals from engaging in conduct that eakes" an
endangered species. 16 U.S.C. § 1538, The term "take" is
defined to include "harass" OX "harm." 16 U.S.C. § 1532(19).

2. Elephants, Including Babies, Are Left Chained For Davs.

Both deponents also restified that elephants are left
chained hour after hour, each day, and that, with few exceptions,
they are allowed off their chains only when they perform. In
addition, when the circus is traveling, the elephants remailn
chained in the stock cars for ag long as 2-3 days consecutively,
and not provided any opportunity, whatsoever, to walk around, or
otherwise exercise. :

These conditions, which are completely at odds with the
‘pnatural biological needs of these magnificent animals, also
constitute the unlawful "taking" of endangered elephants.

* * *

. The above constitutes notice of violationsg of the ESA. ‘
Unless Ringling Brothers rakes immediate actions to STOP thegse
violations of the statute, please be advised that our clients
intend to bring a lawsuit  pursuant to the citizen suit provision

of the ESA to compel it to do 0.
| Sincerely, : :
/."/ . / o ,’}
K . ' < Y A .
F T
Kabherine A. Meyer

é;f—w (_. ' /»’*’/ 'W"‘}.ﬂ_‘;
Gara L. Romanzo ’
cc:  Bruce Babbitt, Secretary of the
Department of the Interior

Jamie Rappaport clarlk, Director,
Fish and Wildlife Service

3
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Meyer & Glitzenstein
1601 Connecticut Avenue, N.W,
Suite 700
Washington, D.C. 20009-1035

Katherive A. Meyer _ _ Telephone (202) 588-5206
Eric R. Glitzenstein ’ ' Fax (202) 588-5049
Howard M. Crystal ‘
Jonathau R. Lovvom

November 15, 1999

Sent By Certified Mail

Mr. Kenneth Feld, President

Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Balley -Circus
8607 Westwood Center Drive o

Vienna, Va. 22182

Re: Vielations of the Endangered Species Act
Notice of Intent To Bue

Dear Mr. Feld:

The purpose of this letter is to supplement the previous
notice letter sent to you on December- 21, 1998, on behalf of Pat
Derby and Ed Stewart regarding violations of the Endangered
Species Act, 16 U.S5.C. § 1538, because of *the unlawful "taking"
of endangered Asian elephants, including baby elephants. I have
attached a copy of our previous notice letter for your
convenlence. ‘

Through the Freedom of Information Act, we recently received
copies of inspection report documents from the U.S. Department of
Agriculture concerning Ringling Brothers’ care and treatment of
paby elephants at its “Center for Elephant conservation' in Polk
City, Florida. One of those reports shows that, in February,
1999, the USDA inspector observed "large visible lesiong'" on the
rear legs of two baby Asian elephants, Doc and Angelica, and that
Ringling Brothers’ employees explained that these lezions “were
caused by rope burns, resulting from the separation process from
the mothers on Janhuary 6, 1999." 3ee Attachment. These

. elephants were born on May 8, 1997, and June 23, 1897,
respectively. Accordingly, they were less than 2 years old when
they were farcibly removed fromn their mothers by Ringling
Brothers.

The. treatment of these elephants, which we can only presume
is part of Ringling Bros.’ routine “"separation process," also
constitutes an unlawful "taking" of endangered elephants, in

1

e Exhibit B —
‘ civ. No. 00-1641 (ESG)
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violation of section 9 of the Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S5.C. §
1538, and the agency’s implementing regulations, because it
"harms" and "harasses" the babies, and also "harasses" their
mothers, by seriously disrupting the natural relationship -between
the adult females and their children. Indeed, it is well
established that, in the wild, baby elephants are not usually
weaned until they are between 2-4 years old, or older, and that,
. even after that, female elephants remain with thelr mothers and
the rest of their herd for the rest of their lives, while males
stay with their families until they are between 9-15 vears old.
See, eg.49., V. Taylor, "Ccaptive Breeding and Infant Mortality in
Asian Elephants," Zoo Bilology 17:311~332 (1998); P. Lee, National
Geographic Research (1986) at 388-401.

pccordingly, this treatment - along with the other :
treatment outlined in our previous letter -- is unlawful under
the ESA. It also violates the conditions under which Ringling
Brothers holds .a captive-bred wildlife registration -~ a separate
violation of ‘the ESA. TFor these reasons, we are reguesting an
investigation by the Fish and Wildlife Service, and we are-also
requesting that the agency revoke Ringling Brothers’ registration
and permits under the ESA with respect to its possession and use
of endangered and threatened elephants. Please be advised that
we may also bring a lawsult directly against Ringling Brothers
for this unconscionable and illegal conduct. . o

Sincerely,

(il 7

Katherine A. Meyer _

cc:  Bruce Babbitt, Secretary,
Department of the Interior
Jamie Clark, Director,
Fish and Wildlife Service
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Katherine A. Meyer
Eric R, Glitzenstein
"Howard M. Crystal
Jonathan R. Lovorn
Daniel R. Vice
«Amy R. Atwood

et e
*Admitted in PA only

Meyer & Glitzenstein
1601 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
~Suite 700 '
Washington, D.C. 20009-1056

Telephone (202) 588-5206 -
 Fax (202) 588-5049
meyerglitz@meyerglitz.com

April 12, 2001

Sent By Certified Madl

Mr . Kenneth Feld, President
Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Bailey Circus
8607 Westwood Center Drive

Vienna, Va.

Dear Mr. Feld:

Notice of Continuing Violationg of the Endangered
Species Act

This letter is written pursuant to the Endangered Species

Act ("ESA"),

16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), on behalf of the American

Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals, the Fund for
Animals, the Animal Welfars Institute, and Tom Rider to provide
you notice of additional and continuing violations of the ESA by
Ringling Brothers and Barnum & Bailey Circus ("Ringling Brog.")
because of its "taking" of endangered Asian elephants used in the

circus.

First,

enclosed ig a videotape that sghows young elephanté

being struck with bullhooks or clubs and other instruments, and,
in ome case, being clipped with a'sharp instrument we believe is
called a "leatherman.! This footage was recorded just months
ago, in the summer of 2000 in California. The footage further
shows that the elephants are being struck without any verbal
command first being given, and without any provocation by the

animals whatsoever,

and that the animals are clearly reacting te

this physical mistreatment. The videotape also shows a young

chained elep
get out of i

hant exhibiting stereotypical behavior as it tries to
rs chains, over and over again. '

Additional footage on the tape, taken in the summexr of 1998

in California,

shows Ringling Bros.' employees hitving adult

elephants under their chins with what appears to be a bullhock oxr

Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1
Civ. No. 00~1641 (EGS)

‘ymsgbon
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club, in an apparent effort to make the animals hold theixr heads
up higher. Again, this is done without giving the elephants any
verbal command and with no provocation on the part of the ‘
animals. . This videotape provides graphic evidence that Ringling
Bros. "takes" these endangered animals by tharming" and
"harassing! them, in cleaxr viclation of the ESA and that
statute’s implementing regulations.

Second, we understand froum eye-witnesses who attended
performances of the circus during Ringling Bros.’ recent visit to
fhe Baltimore/Washington, D.C. area, that the circus used the
elephant "Karen" in the pre-show activities, during which she was
brought out and displayed in extremely close proximity to members
of the audience, including very young children. However,
according to several former Ringling Bros.’ employees, including
Tem Rider, Glen Ewell, and James Strechon, due to years of
beatings at the hands of Ringling Bros.' tralners, Karen is an
extremely dangerous animal, who is considered so dangerous by
Ringling Bros. itself that the members of the elephant crew have
heen warned by the aniwmal's trainers not to go anywhere near her
or they risk peing killed. For this reason, members of the crew
have been imstructed not to feed Karen directly or to bathe her
without a trainer being present to maintain control over her,

Use of this extremely dangerous animal, particularly in the.
pre-show activities -- when she is in close proximity to children
-~ vioclates Animal Welfare Act regulations, 9 C.F.R. § 2.131(b),
which prohibit animals from peing exhibited if they pose a rigk
to the safety of the public. Accordingly, use of this animal in
this way also violates your duties under the ESA and that

. gtatute's implementing regulations, 50 C.F.R. § 13.41, which
provide that any person holding a permit under section 10 of the
ESA ‘must comply . . . with all applicable laws and requlations
governing the permitted activity," including applicable Animal
Welfare Act regulations.

You have previocusly been put on notice of evidence of
violations of the ESA concerning your treatment of Asian
elephants, by letters dated December 2L, 1998 and November 15,
1999, which is hereby incorporated by reference. The new
evidence presented here demonstrates that Ringling Bros.
continues to engage in this unlawful conduct.

Accordingly, by this lettex, you are on notice of Ringling
Brog.' additional and continuing violations of the law. As
required by the ESA, we are providing copies of this letter to
the Secretary of the Department of the .Interior, and to the
Director of the Fish and Wildlife Service. Because this matter
is also currently in litigation, we are also providing a copy of
thig letter to your attorneys.
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Daniel R. Vice

Gale Norton, Secretary of the
Department of the Interior

Marshall Jones, Acting Directox,
Figh and Wildlife Service

Congressman Sam Farr

Jeannle Perron
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